
§501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust                     
  A single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority  

 

AGENDA 
§501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 

Friday, January 18, 2019 at 11:00 a.m.  
Truckee Meadows Water Authority  

Independence Room 
1355 Capital Boulevard, Reno, NV 89502 

 

 

1. Roll call* 

2. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 

3. Approval of the agenda (For Possible Action) 

4. Approval of the October 16, 2018 minutes (For Possible Action) 

5. Discussion and request to appoint TMWA §501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust 
Trustee Chairperson and Vice Chairperson for two-year term beginning January 1, 2019 
through December 31, 2020 (For Possible Action) 

6. Discussion and action on signing §501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust Board of 
Trustees Annual Pledge of Personal Commitment/Disclosure Form—Jessica Atkinson (For 
Possible Action) 

7. Review and approval of Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust calculations for TMWA Retiree 
Mike Bryant—Jessica Atkinson (For Possible Action) 

8. Review and approval of Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust calculations for TMWA Retiree 
Sheryl Houlihan—Jessica Atkinson (For Possible Action) 

9. Review and approval of Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust calculations for TMWA Retiree 
James Pezonella ---Jessica Atkinson (For Possible Action) 

10. Review and consideration for approval of request for reimbursement of premiums for United 
Healthcare paid by retiree. —Jessica Atkinson (For Possible Action) 

11. Review and consideration for approval of request for reimbursement of premiums for United 
Health Care, and Symphonix Value Rx paid by retiree. —Jessica Atkinson (For Possible Action) 

12. Review and consideration for approval of request for reimbursement of premiums for 
Physicians mutual and Cigna Health. —Jessica Atkinson (For Possible Action) 

13. Presentation of the Budget for calendar year 2019 –Michele Sullivan (For Possible Action) 

14. Review of Retirement Benefits Investment Fund (RBIF) performance review—Michele Sullivan 

15. Trustee comments and requests for future agenda items* 

16. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 

17. Adjournment (For Possible Action) 

 



§501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust                     
  A single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority  

 

 

 

NOTES: 
1. The announcement of this meeting has been posted at the following locations: Truckee Meadows Water Authority (1355 Capital Blvd., Reno), 
Reno City Hall (1 E. First St., Reno), Sparks City Hall (431 Prater Way, Sparks), Sparks Justice Court (1675 E. Prater Way, Sparks), Washoe County 
Courthouse (75 Court St., Reno), Washoe County Central Library (301 South Center St., Reno), Washoe County Administration (1001 East Ninth St., 
Reno), and at http://www.tmwa.com. 
2. In accordance with NRS 241.020, this agenda closes three working days prior to the meeting. We are pleased to make reasonable 
accommodations for persons who are disabled and wish to attend meetings. If you require special arrangements for the meeting, please call 834-
8002 before the meeting date. 
3. The Board may elect to combine agenda items, consider agenda items out of order, remove agenda items, or delay discussion on agenda 
items. Arrive at the meeting at the posted time to hear item(s) of interest. 
4. Asterisks (*) denote non-action items. 
5. Public comment is limited to three minutes and is allowed during the public comment periods. The public may sign-up to speak during the 
public comment period or on a specific agenda item by completing a “Request to Speak” card and submitting it to the clerk. In addition to the public 
comment periods, the Chairman has the discretion to allow public comment on any agenda item, including any item on which action is to be taken. 

http://www.tmwa.com/


 1/18/2019 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 

Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 1 of 3 
October 16, 2018  
 

Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
 A single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority 
  

 
DRAFT OCTOBER 16, 2018 MINUTES 

The meeting of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust (Trust) Trustees was held on Tuesday, 
October16, 2018 in the Truckee Meadows Water Authority Independence Room, 1355 Capital Blvd., Reno, 
Nevada. 
 
Michele Sullivan, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 12:58 P.M.  
   
1. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF PRESENCE OF A QUORUM.  

A quorum was present. 

Voting Members Present: Voting Members Absent 
Michele Sullivan James Weingart 
Juan Esparza    
Steve Enos 
 
 
Members Present Members Absent: 
Rosalinda Rodriguez       Pat Waite 
Gus Rossi         
Jessica Atkinson 
 
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 There was no public comment. 

3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent 
of the Trustees present, the Trustees approved the agenda. 

4. APPROVAL OF THE JULY 17, 2018 MINUTES  

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent 
of the Trustees present, the Trustees approved the July 17, 2018 
minutes. 



 1/18/2019 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 

Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 2 of 3 
October 16, 2018  
 

5. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL TRUST BENEFIT CALCULATION FOR 
TMWA RETIREE(S) 

 Ms. Atkinson presented the benefits calculation for Dino Tomburello.  Mr. Tomburello 
will retire on 02/02/2019 and is requesting trust benefits beginning on 03/01/2019.  Ms. 
Atkinson met with the retiree and confirmed the information on the benefit calculation 
form.  He has elected to continue on TMWA coverage as Retiree and dependent child 
for medical (W/O Medicare) and Retiree only for dental and vision coverage. Mr. 
Tomburello has elected to have any remaining premium balance paid from his 
retirement Health Savings (RHS) or PERS check. 

 Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees 
present, the Trustees approved the benefits calculation for Dino Tomburello. 

6. REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF PREMIUMS FOR 
UNITED HEALTH CARE, AND HUMANA HEALTH PAID BY THE RETIREE 

Ms. Atkinson asked Trust Counsel, Gus Rossi if it was necessary to post the backup 
documentation provided for reimbursement requests as part of the Public Agenda 
packet. The concern is that this back up information generally includes personal 
identifying information as well as confidential unrelated financial information.  While 
every effort is made to redact confidential information prior to posting, there is a big 
risk something could accidently be missed. Mr. Rossi advised that as long as TMWA 
would be able to provide the documentation if a records request were to be made, then 
it should be fine. It was agreed that going forward only the reimbursement request form 
would be a part of the posted agenda packet, and the backup documentation would be 
provided to Trustees’ for their review and approval. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees 
present, the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for premiums for United 
Health care, and Humana Health. 

7. REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF PREMIUMS FOR 
UNITED HEALTHCARE, AND SYMPHONIX VALUE RX PLAN PAID FOR BY RETIREE 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees 
present, the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for premiums for United 
Health care and Symphonix Value RX Plan. 

8. REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF MEDICARE PART B, 
PAID FOR BY RETIREE THROUGH SOCIAL SECURITY.  

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees 
present, the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for Medicare Part B. 

9.  REVIEW OF 2017 TAX FORM 990 FILED ON BEHALF OF PRMPT BY EIDE BAILLY 



 1/18/2019 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 

Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 3 of 3 
October 16, 2018  
 

Ms. Sullivan provided a copy of the tax return to trustees that was filed on behalf of 
TMWA by Eide Bailly.  Ms. Sullivan pointed out the total revenue for the year was 
$897,845, which this broken down was a total of $445,00 was contributions, and 
$452,845 was investment income. TMWA does not pay any taxes on this plan but is 
required to file this form.  A copy of this form was provided to Trustee’s before it was 
sent to the IRS. 

 This is for informational purposes only, no action required. 

10. REVIEW OF RETIREMENT BENEFITS INVESTMENT FUND (RBIF) PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

 Ms. Sullivan reviewed the report dated as of June 30, 2018.  There is no updated report 
since June of 2018.  Schedule of their performance, the plan has been doing really well 
up to that point. A 6% rate of return is project for the next quarter, which is a 
conservative number, but we have met in the past. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees 
present, the Trustees approved the financial statements. 

11. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE TRUSTEE DIRECTION REGARDING MEETING TIMES AND DATES FOR 
2019 

Ms. Atkinson proposed that we continue with the same schedule as 2018 for the 
calendar year 2019, which is the second Tuesday following the OPEB meeting quarterly. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees 
present, the Trustees approved the meeting times and dates for calendar year 2019. 

12. TRUSTEE COMMENTS AND REQUEST FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS* 

 RBIF review 

Reappoint Trustees 

12. PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 

13. ADJOURNMENT  

With no further business to discuss, Chairman Sullivan adjourned the meeting at 1:10 p.m. 

Minutes were approved by the Trustees in session on _____________. 

Respectfully Submitted,  

________________________________________________ 
Rosalinda Rodriguez, Recording Secretary 



01/18/2019 PRMT § 501-c-9 Agenda 5 

  Page 1 of 1 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

TO: Board of Trustees of the §501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 

FROM: Jessica Atkinson, TMWA Human Resources Administrator 

DATE: 01/18/2019 

SUBJECT: Discussion and request to appoint TMWA §501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical 

Trust Trustee Chairperson and Vice Chairperson for two year term 

beginning January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2020 

 

 

Recommendation  

TMWA staff recommends that the Board of Trustees discuss and decide which Trustees will 

serve as Chairperson and Vice Chairperson for a two year term beginning January 1, 2019 

through December 31, 2020. 

 

Discussion  

Move to appoint Trustee, ___________________________ to serve a two year term as 

Chairperson of the TMWA §501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Trust Board of Trustees. 

 

Move to appoint Trustee, ___________________________ to serve a two year term as Vice 

Chairperson of the TMWA §501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Trust Board of Trustees. 

 

Background 

During their meeting on January 15, 2019, The TMWA Board confirmed §501-c-9 Trustee 

appointments of Michele Sullivan, Chief Financial Officer, Juan Esparza, Principal Engineer, 

Steve Enos, SCADA Technician, and James Weingart, Apprentice Water Plant Operator for the 

two year term beginning on January 1, 2019 and ending on December 31, 2020. 

 

Trustee Sullivan has been serving as Chairperson of the TMWA §501-c-9 Post-Retirement 

Medical Trust since 2016. 

 

Trustee Enos has been serving as Vice Chairperson of the TMWA §501-c-9 Post-Retirement 

Medical Trust for several years. 



1/15/2019 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 06















01/18/2019 PRMT §501c-9 Agenda Item 07 

  Page 1 of 1 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

TO: Board of Trustees of the Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust  

THRU: Jessica Atkinson, TMWA Human Resources Manager 

DATE: January 8, 2019 

SUBJECT: Review and approval of Post-Retirement Medical Trust benefit calculations 

for TMWA Retiree Michael Bryant 

 

 

Recommendation  

TMWA staff recommends the Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust (PRMPT) approve the 

retirement health insurance benefit calculation for the following TMWA retiree: 

 

CY2019: Michael Bryant 

 

Summary  

Trustees move to approve the benefit calculation, as presented. 

 

Background  

Based on the PRMPT plan document, TMWA Human Resources has completed the benefit 

calculation for the declared retiree. Please refer to the attached benefit calculation worksheet for 

specific details. 

 

TMWA Human Resources has met to discuss this calculation with the retiree and provided a 

copy of the PRMPT Plan Document and applicable PRMPT Policies. The retiree is aware that 

this calculation is based on current plan year (CY19) premium costs. These costs are subject to 

change (increase or decrease) in accordance with annual open enrollment periods. 

 

Retiree has been made aware that in order to qualify for the Post-Retirement Medical Benefits, 

after attaining age 65, the retiree and their qualified dependents must enroll in and pay the cost of 

Medicare A and Medicare Part “B” or Medicare Part “C.” 

 



01/18/2019 PRMT §501c-9 Agenda Item 08 

  Page 1 of 1 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

TO: Board of Trustees of the Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust  

THRU: Jessica Atkinson, TMWA Human Resources Manager 

DATE: January 8, 2019 

SUBJECT: Review and approval of Post-Retirement Medical Trust benefit calculations 

for TMWA Retiree Sheryl Houlihan 

 

 

Recommendation  

TMWA staff recommends the Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust (PRMPT) approve the 

retirement health insurance benefit calculation for the following TMWA retiree: 

 

CY2019: Sheryl Houlihan 

 

Summary  

Trustees move to approve the benefit calculation, as presented. 

 

Background  

Based on the PRMPT plan document, TMWA Human Resources has completed the benefit 

calculation for the declared retiree. Please refer to the attached benefit calculation worksheet for 

specific details. 

 

TMWA Human Resources has met to discuss this calculation with the retiree and provided a 

copy of the PRMPT Plan Document and applicable PRMPT Policies. The retiree is aware that 

this calculation is based on current plan year (CY19) premium costs. These costs are subject to 

change (increase or decrease) in accordance with annual open enrollment periods. 

 

Retiree has been made aware that in order to qualify for the Post-Retirement Medical Benefits, 

after attaining age 65, the retiree and their qualified dependents must enroll in and pay the cost of 

Medicare A and Medicare Part “B” or Medicare Part “C.” 

 



01/18/2019 PRMT §501c-9 Agenda Item 09 

  Page 1 of 1 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

TO: Board of Trustees of the Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust  

THRU: Jessica Atkinson, TMWA Human Resources Manager 

DATE: January 8, 2019 

SUBJECT: Review and approval of Post-Retirement Medical Trust benefit calculations 

for TMWA Retiree James Pezonella 

 

 

Recommendation  

TMWA staff recommends the Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust (PRMPT) approve the 

retirement health insurance benefit calculation for the following TMWA retiree: 

 

CY2019: James Pezonella 

 

Summary  

Trustees move to approve the benefit calculation, as presented. 

 

Background  

Based on the PRMPT plan document, TMWA Human Resources has completed the benefit 

calculation for the declared retiree. Please refer to the attached benefit calculation worksheet for 

specific details. 

 

TMWA Human Resources has met to discuss this calculation with the retiree and provided a 

copy of the PRMPT Plan Document and applicable PRMPT Policies. The retiree is aware that 

this calculation is based on current plan year (CY19) premium costs. These costs are subject to 

change (increase or decrease) in accordance with annual open enrollment periods. 

 

Retiree has been made aware that in order to qualify for the Post-Retirement Medical Benefits, 

after attaining age 65, the retiree and their qualified dependents must enroll in and pay the cost of 

Medicare A and Medicare Part “B” or Medicare Part “C.” 



·1 

Post Retirement Medical Plan & Trust - Medical Premium Expense Reimbursement Request 

DATE RANGE From 07/01/2018 

RETRIEE INFORMATION: To 12/31/2018 

Name: Employee#: 50144 

Address: Phone#: -

11/16/2018 December Premium United Health Care 319.87 / 2 = $ 159.93 

10/18/2018 November Premium United Health Care 319.87 / 2 = $ 159.93 

09/17/2018 October Premium United Health Care 319.87 / 2 = $ 159.93 

08/20/2018 September Premium United Health Care 319.87 / 2 = $ 159.93 

07/17/2018 August Premium United Health Care 319.87/ 2= $ 159.93 

06/18/2018 July Premium United Health Care 319.87/ 2= $ 159.93 

Medicare Eligible? __x_vEs 
--

NO Total! $ 959.58 

Attach copies of Proof of Insurance and Payment of Premium. See back of form for examples of acceptable documentation. 

I certify that the above information is correct. I understand that I will not be reimbursed for medical insurance premiums for any period during which I was not eligible for 

participation or failed to maintain coverage. I further understand that if I receive reimbursement for premiums for which I was not eligible or did not meet eligibility criteria, the 

Trust may recover these payments from my future benefit award(s) and I will be liable for all related taxes. I also authorize the Trust, and its designees to contact the insurance 

company I have listed above to verify coverage and premium amounts paid. I certify that all expenses for which reimbursement or payment is claimed were incurred by myself, 

my spouse, my eligible dependents, or a spouse beneficiary (after the participant's death only) while eligible to receive benefits under the trust. I also certify as follows: 1.) The 

premium expenses have not been reimbursed or will not be reimbursed by any other plan, 2.) The premium expenses were not paid by an employer of a participant or an 

employer of a participant's spouse on a "pre-tax" basis, including, without limitation, a policy or plan offered by an employer under a Code Section 125 plan (commonly referred 

to as a "Cafeteria Plan"). I understand that I am fully responsible for the sufficiency, accuracy, and veracity of all information relating to this reimbursement request. 

Retiree Signature: Date: 12/15/2018 
---------

PRMPT Approval*: Date: 
-----------

• Indicates the reimbursernent request & back up are sufficient and expenses qualify as eligible for reirnbul'Jernenl under the trust 

Accounting Approval**: ___________________________________ _ Date: 
----------

•· Indicates the trust accountant has ensured any amounts reimbursed are with,n the participants available trust balance 

01/18/2019 PRMT § 501-c-9 Agenda 10





01/18/2019 P
R

M
T A

genda Item
 12



Additions

Contributions

Employer 138,578$            

Plan Members 97,800 

Total Contributions 236,378              

Investment Income

Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investment ‐ 

Investment income 228,000              

Less investment expenses (2,500) 

Net investment income 225,500              

Total Additions 461,878              

Deductions

Benefits paid 402,400              

Administrative expenses 25,400 

Total Deductions 427,800              

Net Increase (Decrease) 34,078$              

Truckee Meadows Water Authority

Post‐Retirement Medical Plan & Trust

Budget for Calendar Year 2019

Attachment A

C:\Users\rrodriguez\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 

Files\Content.Outlook\HO77ZV26\Budget CY 2019 ‐ PRMPT.xlsx

01/18/2019 PRMT Agenda Item 13 
Attachment A



01/18/2019 PRMT Agenda Item 13    

  Page 1 of 1 

§501-c-9 Post- Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
  a single employer plan sponsored by 

  Truckee Meadows Water Authority  

 

TO: Board of Trustees of the Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 

FROM: Michele Sullivan, TMWA CFO and Trust Chairperson 

DATE: January 18, 2019  

SUBJECT:     Presentation of the Budget for Calendar Year 2019 

 

 

Recommendation 

 

The Board of Trustees approves the calendar year 2019 budget.  

 

Suggested Motion 

 

 

Discussion 

 

The Calendar Year 2019 Budget for the 501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust 

(PRMPT) is provided for the Trustee’s review in Attachment A. In addition to retiree health and 

life insurance premiums, the budget reflects contributions/additions from the employer, the 

retiree’s portion of premiums and certain administrative expenses primarily for legal services 

and the annual audit.  No unrealized gain/loss in asset fair value is planned for this year as this is 

difficult to accurately predict.  The Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) to be deposited 

with the Trust from TMWA is expected to be approximately $138,578 in the calendar year. 

TMWA conducts an actuarial analysis every two years to make sure funding levels are adequate. 

 

The PRMPT expects to incur about $402,400 in gross retiree health care and life premium 

expenses. The Trust now provides benefits for 27 beneficiaries who are actually receiving 

benefits and enrolled in plans offered by TMWA.  The Trust has 9 beneficiaries who are 

receiving benefits via reimbursement of premiums via trust credit (not enrolled in plans offered 

by TMWA).  The Trust has one beneficiary who has a remaining benefit available under life 

time credit and a total of 43 beneficiaries who are currently receiving a life benefit.  Five 

additional retirees are expected to enroll in this calendar year.  

 

Total PRMPT assets are expected to be around $10.9 million throughout the calendar year and 

are reflective of a very healthy funding level to meet future Plan participant requirements. The 

RBIF assets allocation is approximately 72% equities and 28% fixed rate securities so volatility 

in the equity markets will translate to RBIF investment performance. 

 

 



Asset Class Market Value Target 
Allocation

Actual 
Allocation

FYTD 
Return One Year 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years

Since 
Inception 

(2008)

U.S. Stocks- S&P 500 Index 250,506,285$     50.5% 52.0% 7.7% 17.9% 17.2% 13.9% 12.0% 9.6%
Market Return 7.7% 17.9% 17.3% 14.0% 12.0% 9.6%
Int'l Stocks- MSCI World x US Index 97,582,852$       21.5% 20.3% 1.3% 2.9% 9.4% 4.6% 5.4% 2.8%
Market Return 1.3% 2.7% 9.2% 4.4% 5.4% 2.6%
U.S. Bonds- U.S. Bond Index 129,343,157$     28.0% 26.9% -0.6% -1.6% 0.2% 1.6% 3.3% 2.9%
Market Return -0.6% -1.6% 0.2% 1.3% 2.7% 2.7%

4,249,738$         0.0% 0.9%

Market Return 3.9% 8.7% 10.4% 8.3% 8.3% 6.7%

8.4% 6.6%

Retirement Benefits Investment Fund
September 30, 2018

Performance

Total RBIF Fund 481,682,032$     100.0% 100.0% 4.0% 8.9% 10.6% 8.2%

01/18/2019 PRMT Agenda Item 14


	2019.0118 PRMT Agenda final
	2019.0118 PRMT 04 Minutes of October 16th meeting_draft
	2019.0118 PRMT 05 Election of Chair and Vice-Chair
	2019.0118 PRMT 06__ Conflict of Interest and Disclosure Policy Adopted 2011_0223 Signed
	2019.0118 PRMT 07 Retiree Benefit Calculation staff report_ Bryant, Michael
	2019.0118 PRMT 08 Retiree Benefit Calculation staff report_Houlihan, Sheryl
	2019.0118 PRMT 09 Retiree Benefit Calculation staff report_ Pezonella, James
	2019.0118 PRMT 10_ Reimbursement request_Redacted
	2019.0118 PRMT 11_ Reimbursement request_Redacted
	2019.0118 PRMT 12_ Reimbursement request_Redacted
	2019.0118 PRMT 13 Attachment A_ Budget CY 2019
	2019.0118 PRMT 13 Presentation of Budget for Calendar Year 2019
	2019.0118 PRMT 14 RBIF-Investment-Performance
	JRS




